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Address : P.O.Box 7, Ben-Gurion International Airport 7015001, Phone:972 3 9750587, Fax:972 3 9711296 
 

November 3, 2016 

 

To all Bidders 

 

Re:Tender No. 2016/070/0280/00 for the Design, Supply, Installation, Commissioning and 
Maintenance of an Advanced Visual Docking Guidance System (AVDGS) for the Israel 

Airport Authority 
 

Addendum No. 2 

1. The Israel Airports Authority ("IAA") issues this Addendum no. 2 in accordance with 
Section 13 of the Request for Proposals issued on September 5, 2016 (the "RFP"). This 
Addendum no. 2 forms an integral part of the Tender Documents and which shall bind each 
of the Bidders in relation to the Tender in reference for every matter and purpose. All 
capitalized terms shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the RFP. 

2. The attention of all participants is hereby drawn to the amendments, clarifications and 
answers to questions regarding the Tender Documents as set forth in Appendix A attached 
hereto. 

3. In addition, at the request of several bidders, an additional Bidders' Tour will be conducted on 
November 14, 2016 at Ben Gurion Airport at 09:00 (the "Additional Tour "). Participation 
in the Additional Tour is optional and not mandatory, bidders are requested to provide details 
of their representatives to the tour. 

The IAA would like to emphasize that after this Additional Tour no additional tours will be 
conducted.  

4. In accordance with the provisions of the RFP, you are kindly requested to acknowledge      
receipt of this Addendum, no later than 2 days following receipt thereof, by a written notice 
to the IAA, in the format attached to this Addendum as Appendix B. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Carmel Goldberg 
Senior Contracts Manager 
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Appendix A 

 
Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

1.  0.5 (2) The technical proposal shall be one-to-one to 
the chapters. We understood during the site 
conference that the technical solution can be 
proposed in a more flexible way and not 
mandatory according to the chapter’s 
paragraphs. Can you confirm that. 

IAA does not confirm. The Technical Proposal (the "Free 
Text Response" part of it) shall correspond 1:1 to the 
Technical Chapters' paragraphs structure.  
The Bidder may Utilize its response to Chapter 2 for a 
more flexible description of its solution, in addition to the 
response to all other technical chapters, and not instead of 
those. 

2.  0.5 (2) Can the technical proposal and the answers to 
the Q requirements be only one and the same 
document? 

See answer #1 to Section 0.5 

3.  0.5 (4) (b). and 
0.7 and 0.7.2 

Free text response, we understood during the 
site conference that this is attributed to the Q 
requirements only and explanation on these 
items shall be formulated on a separate 
document. Can you confirm that 

Please refer to paragraph 0.7.1 and to 0.5 (7), which 
explains the requested structure of the Response. 
The Bidder is expected to respond a detailed response 
("Free Text Response") for the "Q", "PQ", "OQ" 
requirements (corresponding 1:1 to the structure of the 
requirements chapters) These responses shall be evaluated 
and graded by the IAA.  
There is a separated Excel file in which all the 
requirements are to be replied using formatted response 
(Compliance / Non-Compliance / partial compliance 
Tables).  

4.  1.8 Please confirm that the infrastructure for 
installing AVDGS will be provided by IAA. 
We suggest that IAA will provide brackets, 
cables, fiber optic switches and/or connection 
boxes if needed. Please note that 1 fiber optic 
switch can cover more than 1 AVDGS. 

IAA provides only fiber optic cables and power to the 
DSS and to the cabinets and racks.  All accessories, 
cabinets, racks connectors, active network components, 
etc. are the Bidders responsibility. 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

5.  2.1.1 (4) (b) Could you please explain monitor and control 
un-docking? 

The system should monitor the departing ACFT: detect if 
the ACFT is out of the Gate/stand Area, provide the ACFT 
the relevant operational information using the PDU and 
provide status of AUX systems at the gate/stand. 

6.  2.1.1 (4) (d) What is the pilot’s information needed for 
departure? 

Please see section 3.3.9 (3) (h), and Section 3.3.9 (3) (i),  
additional required data (such as CTOT) shall be finalized 
as part of the detailed design phase. 

7.  Appendix B 
2.1.4.1 

This is a header; an h is missing in the Class 
column. 
Can you add it. 

IAA assumes that the question refers to the Excel file for 
the formatted response:  
Sections headers are usually marked in the Excel 
document with "h"(=header). These header lines mean to 
improve readability and orientation for the reader. The 
Bidder may ignore them and respond only to the 
requirements under it. 
For the line of 2.1.4.1 the missing "h" is a typo.  
In any case if an "h" is missing from a header the Bidder 
shall respond with an "X" in the first category 
("Compliance") only, for the level of compliance of its 
solution for the entire section (over/full/partial/none).  

8.  2.1.6 (2) (a) What is peripherals? Can you detail de 
monitoring of the network? 

Please refer to Section 6.4.3 – Working Positions/ Stations 
& Peripherals. 

9.  Appendix B 
2.2 

This is a header; an h is missing in the Class 
column. 
Can you add it. 

 See answer #7 for section 2.1.4.1 

10.  Appendix B 
2.2.1 

This is a header; an h is missing in the Class 
column. 
Can you add it. 

See answer #7 for section 2.1.4.1 

11.  2.2.3 (7) When the Honeywell VDGS is 
decommissioned, error or alarms will appear 
on the central Honeywell system. Is it correct 
understood that The Selected Bidder shall not 
intervene, in the Honeywell system? 

It is correct that the Selected Supplier shall not intervene 
with existing Honeywell System. 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

12.  2.2.3 (10) Please explain the administrative tool? Refer to chapter 3.  

13.  2.2.3 (11) Please specify the information security 
requirements. 

Refer to chapter 6 

14.  2.3.2.2 (1) When the Honeywell VDGS is 
decommissioned, error or alarms will appear 
on the central Honeywell system. Is it correct 
understood that we are not intervening, in the 
Honeywell system? 

It is correct that the Selected Supplier shall not intervene 
with the existing Honeywell System. 

15.  2.3.2.2 (2) (a) When the Honeywell VDGS is 
decommissioned, error or alarms will appear 
on the central Honeywell system. Is it correct 
understood that The Selected Bidder shall not 
intervene, in the Honeywell system? 

It is correct that the Selected Supplier shall not intervene 
with existing Honeywell System. 

16.  2.3.4.6 (3) Please confirm that the network is under SOW 
of IAA, please confirm 

IAA will provide passive fiber optic network only. Please 
refer to Section 9.12 for a concentrate overview of entire 
scope of IAA’s CFE. This Section refers the reader to 
other Sections in the Technical Appendix where more 
details about IAA’s CFE are stipulated. 

17.  2.3.4.7 1. Connecting AC power to the junction 
Boxes of each pole, will IAA electrical 
team make the actual connection between 
the AC cable provided by the contractor to 
the junction box? 

2. Will IAA provide the moving and lifting 
equipment (scissor man lift and or small 
crane)? 

3. Will IAA provide and build the 8 new 
poles at concourse E and all cabling 
conduct/tray needed? 

4. In case of multiple E-Stops that are not on 
the pole, how should the cable be routed 

1. IAA will provide the connection box at the lower part 
of the pole, and a connection cable to the DSS.  

2. No. However any equipment provided by the supplier 
shall be approved as per the Contract. 

3. IAA will provide the connection cable between the 
DSS and the E-STOP.IAA will and construct 8 poles 
for concourse E, at the positions marked in the layout 
schemes with the junction box, and cabling. 

4. The Supplier may assume utilizing the existing E-
Stop cables at each Stand in B C D, including the E-
Stop installed in each bridge. The Supplier must 
install the E-Stop utilizing the interface to the planed 
bridge. 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

from the pole to the E-STOPs is there 
existing cable tray conduits? 

 

18.  2.3.4.7 (3) Paragraph 2.3.4.7 (3) states that the bidder 
shall dismantle the old PDU and old MCB 
while keeping the F/O ring connection intact.  
We understand that as soon as the dismantled 
unit is put on the floor by the bidder, IAA is 
responsible for disposing of it. Please confirm. 
What connector types will the F.O 
infrastructure have? 

IAA will provide a new outdoor connection box for the 
new SM fiber optic cables to each new DSS. The box will 
be installed at the upper part of the pole. 
The Bidder is responsible to connect the DSS cabinet to 
this box. The connector type is SC. 
 
The IAA will dismount and dispose the old PDU prior to 
the installation of the new DSS with the intention to 
keeping the down time to a minimum. 

19.  2.3.4.7 (5) Paragraph 2.3.4.7 (5) states that during the 
interim period, the operators shall operate two 
systems in parallel. 
Please clarify the bidder responsibility. Who 
is responsible to decommission the existing 
system? 
Do you mean that the bidder shall consider to 
have two PDU at certain stand due to the 
parallel operation? 

IAA is responsible for decommissioning of the old system.
No two systems on the same pole. Each Stand will have 
only ONE system: either PDU or DSS, depending on the 
progress of the DSS installation. The order of installation 
will be determined by IAA. The provided fiber optic 
infrastructure supports any order of installation within B C 
D! 

20.  2.4.2 (6) 
 

Please clarify that the software upgrade does 
not include optional remote and A concourse 

Please refer to Spreadsheet D.6 and D.7 in the Price 
Proposal Form Workbook (Appendix D). there it is  
specified that the Options (1 and/ 2) include inter alia 
integration with the existing system,  
For Software and Middleware updates/upgrades please 
refer to Section 8.2.2.2.4 (5)  

21.  2.4.2.10 Do IAA mean by interim maintenance that the 
bidder should provide maintenance on the 
existing VDGS? This existing system is not a 
system owned by the bidder. 

The Bidder is not responsible to the current VDGS system 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

22.  2.5.2 (2) (d) Can you indicate what type of standard it is 
related for the VDGS, since we have no color 
beam on the DSS. 

This requirement is deleted from the Technical 
requirements. 

23.  3.2 Could you please provide additional 
description for the part Data Administration 
under Technical Management? What should 
the data administration function look like? 

See additional description on Par. 3.5.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 

24.  3.3.1 (3) Can you please explain the meaning of this 
requirement? 

The Bidder is requested to describe the suggested system 
functional stages, in reference to the table in section 3.3.1 
(2), or any additional internal system stages. Explanation 
could be supported by flowcharts / schemes. 

25.  3.3.2.2 (5) Paragraph mentioned that Manual Activation 
should have separate and configurable set of 
rules/conditions. 
 
Could you please explain what is meant here? 
Should the operator be allowed to ignore 
adjacency/blocking rules? 

Requirement 3.3.2.2 (5) is deleted from the Technical 
requirements. 

26.  3.3.5.2 Point 3 is stating 30m for providing guidance. 
Is this a minimum distance from PDU or stop 
position? Which distance shall be considered 
since Par 4.6.4 & 4.6.5 are giving different 
information. Please clarify 

The system should provide guidance at 30 meters from the 
stop-position. (This is a “Q” requirements). 
The system shall provide guidance at 25 meters from the 
stop position according to ICAO requirements. (for the 
specific aircraft being guided) 

27.  3.4.2 (6) Paragraph states that the central system shall 
allow controlling the level of data presentation 
(e.g. adding or removing data layers). 
 
Could you please give examples of which 
layers should be possible to add/remove? 

The bidder should explain what are the data layers in the 
system, such as – stands data, systems status indicators, 
labels, buildings, etc. and enable the user to define / 
control the presentation of theses layers separately. 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

28.  3.4.6 Could you please give an example of the 
differences in procedures during Low 
Visibility situation. 

This requirement is deleted from the Technical 
requirements. 

29.  Chapter 3, 
Annex 3-A 

We are missing information on AutoCAD 
drawings given. 
Could you please provide the following 
information on AUTOCAD Drawings 
detailing: 
All apron marking such as stand 
identification, lead-in line, turn bar, turning 
line, alignment bar, stop line and lead-out line 
marking as well as all apron stand names. 
All taxiway marking such as edge, centreline, 
runway holding position and intermediate 
holding position marking as well as all 
taxiway names. 
Dimensions and construction details of the 
facades of the buildings in the apron area 
including mainly the terminal building as well 
as any other electrical rooms, hangars, or 
other infrastructures (such as barding bridges) 
that could be used to mount the VDGS units 
or that could blind their scanning range. 
The location of apron facilities or equipment 
in the vicinity that may affect the VDGS 
detection range such as boarding bridges, 
floodlighting masts, etc. 
Relevant existing health and safety 
documentation (for refurbishment or 
additional construction on an existing site); 
Relevant information on the existing 
structural elements (this may require a 

Some of the requested details such as: taxiway marking 
edge, centerline, runway holding position and intermediate 
holding position marking as well as all taxiway names, are 
not relevant to the AVDGS. The IAA has provided in the 
appendices (e.g. in annex 3-A and in the pptx file: IAA_A-
VDGS-RFP-Appendix-A__Annex 4-B- LLBG Apron 
Stands Pics&Dim.pptx) all the relevant details for the 
AVDGS proposal submission purpose. In a case that still 
there is a missing information please specify the exact gate 
and exact detail that is missing.  
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

dimensional survey of all existing 
posts/brackets etc. to confirm sizes); 
Details of all new signs to be installed on 
posts; 

30.  4.2  (3)  
(a), (b) & (c) 

Please clarify if the systems in core 1 and 2 
are redundant (2 servers each) or if the desired 
redundancy is guaranteed due to the fact that 
there are two non-redundant systems? 
 

It is up to the Bidder to propose an architecture which 
comply with the redundancy requirements. The two core 
rooms shall be utilize to provide the level of redundancy 
proposed by the bidder as long as it complies with all the 
relevant requirements, such as: no single point of failure, 
for example. 

31.  4.4.2.2 , 4.4.2.3 Is it possible to utilize IAA IT Database center 
(oracle)  for the system 

No sharing with other IAA IT systems and Data bases is 
permitted. 

32.  4.6.2. S-shaped lead in lines.  
 
1. Are these being indicated/painted at apron 
as the trajectory for the nose wheel at the 
plane to follow or is it the nose of the 
incoming plane that shall follow the line? 
2. Or is it even so that the s shaped lines are a 
common “average” of a suggested curve to 
follow, suggesting to the pilot to oversteer the 
fuselage in the curves making the plane end 
up 100% in symmetric over the last part of the 
line. I.e. so that the main gear at the plane are 
equally distanced left/right from the line. 

IAA Confirm that option 2 is the correct requirement. 
 

33.  4.6.4.1 (5) & (6) Point 5 & 6 are contradicting as to when PDU 
shall provide guidance: 25m or 100m? Please 
clarify 

PDU visibility (displaying flight number gate name etc.) 
shall be visible (readable) for at least 100 meters in all 
weather conditions. The PDU shall be able to display the 
instruction/guidance according to Section 3.3.5.2  

34.  4.6.5 (4) Point 4 is mentioning 70m. This is 
contradictory to Par. 4.6.4.1. Please clarify 

This is the requirement of detecting the aircraft. (Section 
4.6.4.1 is for PDU visibility). 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

35.  4.6.8 Is it requested that the DSS have two manual 
Operational Buttons in the vicinity of the DSS 

Please refer to 4.6.8.1 – there is only one OCU per Stand 
but some stands have more than one STOP buttons. Please 
refer to Annex 4A for exact locations of the STOP buttons

36.  4.6.9 Where is the demarcation point of the IAA's 
supplied F/O ring, at the pole or up inside the 
PDU?  IAA is kindly requested to enable 
either of the aforementioned solutions. 

Near the PDU, so it is reachable only with height works 
lift equipment.  
It is also requested near the OCU Please refer to 4.6.8 
 

37.  4.6.10.1 (6) "DSS shall have redundant power supplies" is 
a "PQ" requirement. IAA is requested to 
consider classify it as a "Q" requirement.  

The requirement is re-classified. The updated 
classification shall be "Q".   

  

38.  4.6.11 Paragraph 4.6.11 states that the DSS shall 
Under what ambient temperature range shall 
the system operate? i.e. from –y degrees to +x 
degrees?   

Please refer to 6.7.2 

39.  4.6.14.1 (5) Please confirm that the brackets where the 
AVDGS should be attached will be placed 
exactly in the extension of the stand center 
line. During the site inspection we observed 4 
stands (C3, D3, D7 and B6) where the 
brackets are installed slightly besides the 
extension of the stand centerline. In these 4 
stands the brackets will have to be slightly 
adjusted. If other stands might be in the same 
situation, the same adjustment will have to be 
done here as well. 

IAA will not provide any brackets. The Bidder is 
responsible to install the DSS on the existing pole at 
location and tilt required by its design. All adjustments to 
the poles shall be the Bidder's responsibility. 

  

40.  Chapter 5 AODB, DCRS 
We assume that these systems are already 
operational at the airport and used by other 
systems to interface. Is it therefor possible for 
us to receive existing ICDs or other available 
documentation in addition to the information 
in chapter 5? 

These Systems are indeed operational. 
The existing information in Chapter 5 is sufficient for the 
Proposal purposes. The detailed ICD shall be provided to 
the selected Bidder.  
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

41.  5.4  (6) (b) Paragraph states that A-VDGS is required to 
prepare a record file for each stand for 
specific flight number 
 
In order to better understand the requirement, 
could you please elaborate about the purpose 
of message from A-VDGS to DCRS? 

DCRS system requires details about the aircraft/ACID that 
is being serviced at a specific stand, for billing purposes. 
 

42.  6.6.2.1 (5) Could you please elaborate on what you mean 
by authentication procedure? 

In other words: All authentication activities (idle time 
logout, user entering passwords, shall be recorded for 
future audit. 

43.  6.8.3 (3) (e) Can you elaborate on reconnecting the old 
fiber ring as described in 6.8.3(3) (e), is it 
simply connecting two fibers together? 

Please refer to #18 Q&A for paragraph 2.3.4.7 (3) 

44.  7.1.4 ,  
7.1.5 

We understand that the design of the poles & 
supply for concourse E as well as option 1 & 
2, it is under IAA responsibility. Please 
confirm 

Please refer to Section 9.12.4 – Poles and Space for 
DSS’s. 

45.  7.1.5 For Option 1 & 2, IAA is responsible to 
provide all network & electrical needs to 
dedicated location. Please confirm   

Please refer to entry #1 and entry #2 in the table at Section 
1.8. 

46.  7.3.2 Paragraph 7.3.2 states that the bidder shall 
provide a high level project plan.  Could you 
please outline the working hours that would 
be available to us onsite when replacing the 
systems on the poles per concourse? We 
assume that concourse E will be accessible 
earlier with no operation. Please confirm and 
provide the estimated access time period for 
the bidder. 

The question refers to "Concourse" however IAA's 
requirements are per gate at concourses B, C and D 
(Section 7.3.5.10 (4): “The expected down time for each 
gate shall be no more than 24 hours”.) 
The sequence of installations of the gates will be 
determined by the IAA. 
The Bidder’s assumption that Concourse E will be 
available prior to its Operational Activation is correct; 
However, the installations at concourse E is according to 
Section 7.3.11.  
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

47.  7.3.5.10 (4) We understand that the design of the poles for 
concourse BCD is under bidder´s 
responsibility. Please confirm 

Incorrect. Please refer to 7.3.5.10 (4): “and mounting the 
new DSS on the existing poles”. 

48.  Chapter 8 Service Level Agreement 
 
It is requested that The Bidder cannot be held 
responsible for damages, malfunctions, 
accidents, etc. caused because of fault from 
IAA staff. If the IAA staff is not acting 
according to The Company's instructions, The 
Company cannot be held responsible for 
problems or damages occurring. 

Confirmed. please refer to 8.2.2.2.5 (6)  and to Q&A  #57

49.  8.2.2.2.3 Paragraph states that the supplier shall 
manage all the changes in the systems. Could 
you please clarify what kind of changes IAA 
foresee based on your experience? How 
changes that were not foresee by IAA & 
Supplier or changes that do not fall into the 
service agreement will be handled? 

All system changes through system life shall be managed 
regardless if they are included in the maintenance service, 
exercising options, or any other form of agreement with 
IAA. 

50.  8.2.2.2.4 (7) We understand that an extension of the system 
would be part of the project scope and not 
seen as a maintenance task. The max 
extension is 100 units, do we have to 
understand that the extension is beyond the 
100 units? If so how can we price the 
additional works linked to this extension? 

The requirement is for up to 100 units. The maintenance 
fee will not be changed when enhancing the system or 
exercising the options. Above 100 units, it shall be in 
accordance to Variation Order procedures as stipulated in 
the Contract. 

51.  8.2.2.2.5 Paragraph states that the supplier should 
provide 24/7 support to assist the local team. 
Since we would like to clarify the line for 
responsibility between the different level, we 
suggest that in case we are called for L1 
issues, the supplier should be allowed to 
invoice the service too. 

The maintenance fee includes any remote assistance for all 
levels – as will be needed. 
 In addition, please refer to 8.2.2.2.5 (8) (Critical failures), 
and to 8.4.4. , and to 8.2.2.3 optional services and 8.3.1 
suppliers responsibilities.  
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

52.  8.2.2.2.5 (7) IAA is able to dictate the level of severity at 
its sole discretion. The level of severity should 
be identified beforehand to avoid un- justified 
escalation. Can you describe the first level, 
second level activities. 

The Bidder is responsible to define the maintenance 
activities attributed to each level, and train the IAA team 
accordingly. 
Please refer to Section 8.4.3. 

53.  8.2.2.3 (3) (a) Paragraph states that the IAA can purchase 
additional WS & DSS beyond the system. 
 
If such situation occurs, how the bidder shall 
consider the price of SLA to be?  How shall 
we consider the warranty part for this 
extension? 

Up to the maximal System capacity as defined in Chapter 
4 Section 4.3.6 (20 Workstations, 100 DSS's) the 
maintenance price and the SLA is fixed. 
Beyond this System's capacity, it will be per the Variation 
Order Procedure as defined at the Contract.  

54.  8.3.1 How maintenance responsibility is shared 
between the Supplier and the Client. 

The Supplier's maintenance responsibilities are described 
in section 17.5 of the Contract and the corresponding 
sections of the Technical Specifications..  

55.  8.3.1 We understand that the bidder is responsible 
to provide all maintenance infrastructure 
required. Please confirm. 
Does IAA have at its disposal lifting devices 
that could be used during the SLA period or 
the bidder shall make it available. 

During the maintenance period IAA shall provide the 
lifting devices. 

56.  8.5.2.1 SLA - Repair Time 
The paragraph states that the problem shall be 
fully repaired or bypassed with 30 minutes. 
Please confirm that it is for the IAA team, 
correct? 

The system must be designed in such a way that critical 
malfunctions can be corrected within 30 minutes by a 
trained technician of the IAA.  

57.  8.5.1.7 The IAA Technical team may at its sole 
discretion escalate the problem to a higher 
level of the supplier’s management Level.  
IAA local team will serve as the supplier’s 
local maintenance team (Level 1 & 2) 
 

Penalties are according to the SLA model described at 
Section 8.5, and are based on the non-availability of  the 
System's components. 
The availability for the SLA excludes several events 
which are defined in Section 8.5.3 (3), and in addition in 
Section 8.2.2.3,2, b defines actions by IAA that are not 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

Since the bidder is taking all responsibilities 
and IAA wish to apply penalties on him 
during the SLA, the bidder suggests to clearly 
outline the different levels of responsibility 
and thus let IAA being 100% the sole 
responsible for level 1 &2. 

covered by the Supplier’s warranty and/or by Maintenance 
Services according to Chapter 8 of the Technical 
Appendix of the RFP: “Fault correction of a component 
that is not covered by the Supplier’s warranty, an 
electronic component that was damaged as a result of 
wrong usage or incorrectly installed as opposed to the 
manufacturer / supplier’s installation manuals.”. 
Regarding Level 1 & 2, see answer to #52, regarding 
Section 8.2.2.2.5 (7).  
Please refer also to Section 8.5.7 regarding alternative 
maintenance models. 

58.  8.5.1.8 Could you please clarify, elaborate on how 
IAA will differentiate responsibilities between 
all involved parties? 

The AVDGS system is interfaced to several external 
systems and infrastructures (CFE such as electricity, fiber 
optic, AODB, NTP, and DCRS systems) which are not 
supplied by the Bidder. The Bidder is however responsible 
for the proper operation of AVDGS, thus it shall isolate 
each problem in order to make sure the provided CFE 
component is working properly. The repair of any CFE's 
malfunctions is not under the responsibility of the Bidder, 
and it will not be calculated for the availability of the 
system. 

59.  8.7.3 (5) Life span of newly replaced item. 
Could you please provide clarification on this 
paragraph? Do you mean that during the 5 
years’ warranty period, any components being 
replaced should have a life span of 5 years? 

Please refer to 17.5.5 in the contract (a reference 
correction). 
 
During the first 5 years (warranty + 3 years) the supplier is 
responsible for replacing an END OF LIFE component. 
The newly replaced item should operate 5 years 

60.  Chapter 9 Detailed of Breakdown component. 
Throughout the all documentation and in this 
chapter 9, we do not get the clear 
understanding of how many E-Stop is 
required by gate and their location. Could you 
please provide such information? 

Please refer to Annex 4A for exact locations of E-stops at 
each Stand.  
Please also refer to Q&A #17 (per section Par. 2.3.4.7). 
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Q# Section Bidders’ Question IAA’s Response 

61.  9.1.1 (9) Reference to Section "9.59.6" - is this a typing 
error or if not where can we find it? 

Yes, It's a typing error. it should reference to 9.5 (spare 
part section)  

62.  9.1.3, Table 9-1 Column (8) Bidders comment: is it required 
that the bidder is commenting every line item 
of the proposal or just in case it would be 
found necessary upon bidder’s judgement? 

 In case it would be found necessary 

63.  9.12 Is it requested from the Bidder to supply the 
Gate sign (e.g. C4, B7, etc)? 
 
 

No. the gate signs are supplied by IAA. 
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Appendix B 

Acknowledgment of Receipt 

Date: _______ 

 

To: 
Mr. Carmel Goldberg 
Senior Contracts Manager 
Logistics Department 
Israel Airport Authority 
Ben Gurion International Airport 
P.O. Box 7 
Tel-Aviv, Israel 

         Fax no. +972 3 971 1296 

 

 

 

Re: Addendum No. 2 – Tender No. 2016/070/0280/00 for the Design, Supply, Installation, 
Commissioning and Maintenance of an Advanced Visual Docking Guidance System (AVDGS) 

for the Israel Airport Authority 

 

 

Pursuant to the RFP for the Tender in reference and in accordance with the provisions thereof, we 
hereby acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2. 

 

 

 

       

 (name of participant and authorized representative’s signature) 
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